
AGENDA
Committee - GREATER THETFORD 

DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP 
COMMUNITY SUB-GROUP

Date & Time - WEDNESDAY, 19TH SEPTEMBER, 
2018 AT 7.00 PM

Venue - GUILDHALL COUNCIL CHAMBER, 
MARKET PLACE, THETFORD, IP24 
2DS

Public Document Pack



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Community Sub-Group
Wednesday, 19th September, 2018

Page(s)
herewith

1. AGENDA 3

2. MINUTES - 16 MAY 2018 4 - 10

3. CHAIRMANS NOTES 11 - 12

4. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 13 - 14

5. SUE / TEP UPDATE 15 - 16



GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting
Wednesday 19th September 2018, 7–9pm,

Guildhall Council Chamber, Market Place, Thetford

Agenda
1. Introductions

2. Approval of Minutes
Approval of the minutes from the previous Sub-Group meeting of 16th May.

3. Announcements & Matters Arising
Announcements from the Chair; Matters arising from the minutes not covered in another item.

4. Sustainable Urban Expansion, Thetford Enterprise Park, and Waterspace Updates

5. Public Questions
Up to 15 minutes for questions and comments from members of the public.

6. Items for Discussion
Main items for public discussion and input. See separate papers for further details.

(a) Community Sub-Group Independent Member Recruitment
Closing date for applications: Monday 1st October.
Full details at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/get-involved or from Leaping Hare.

(b) Community Sub-Group Administrative Support Arrangements

7. Items to Note
Other items of public interest, which there will not necessarily be time to discuss at this meeting.

(a) Norfolk County Council is running a series of hazardous waste days at its recycling centres,
where the public can dispose of items not normally accepted there. Thetford’s take place
on 6th and 7th October. Full details at https://bit.ly/2szwoAi.

(b) Breckland Council is running a third consultation on the Thetford Boundary Changes, with
a closing date for comments of 28th September. Full details can be found at
https://www.breckland.gov.uk/Community-Governance-Review-Thetford

8. Any Other Business

9. Meeting Summary

Members of the public are encouraged to attend and participate at the meeting. In addition to the time
for public questions, members of the public have the opportunity to contribute during the remainder of
the meeting at the invitation of the Chair. Further details and meeting papers are available online at
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/community-subgroup. Minutes and papers are also available at the Town
Council Offices in King’s House and at Leaping Hare on King Street.

3

Agenda Item 1

http://www.gtdp.org.uk/get-involved
https://bit.ly/2szwoAi
https://www.breckland.gov.uk/Community-Governance-Review-Thetford
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/community-subgroup


1

GREATER THETFORD DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP COMMUNITY SUB-GROUP

Held on Wednesday, 16 May 2018 at 7.00 pm in
King's House, King Street, Thetford, IP24 2AT

PRESENT
Mr Robert Whittaker (RWh) Chairman
Mike Brown (MB) - Business Forum
Brenda Canham (BC) – Thetford Town Council
Andy Cruse (AC) – Community Representative
Martin Engwell (ME) – Brettenham & Kilverstone Parish Council
Corrine Fulford (CF) – Community Representative
Doug Stephen (DS) – Croxton Parish Council

In Attendance
Riana Rudland – Breckland Place Manager, Breckland Council
Teresa Smith – Democratic Services Officer, Breckland Council

Action By

21/18 INTRODUCTIONS 

The Chairman welcomed members of the Public to the meeting.

22/18 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Minute reference 16/18 – CF asked for it to be noted that she was 
disappointed with the lack of consistent approach from Norfolk County 
Council.

Subject to the above amendment, the minutes of the meeting held on 
21 March 2018 were approved.

23/18 ANNOUNCEMENTS AND MATTERS ARISING 

GTDP Board Meetings
The Chairman was disappointed to learn at very short notice that 
Breckland Council had put on hold advertising for independent 
members to the Community Sub-group.  The Board had recognised 
previous feedback from the Community Sub-Group and a report would 
be referred to the next Board meeting.

It was queried if the current independent members would remain the 
same.  It was confirmed that the Independent Members would remain 
the same until further advised by the Board. 

Some members shared their frustration that there had been very little 
communication about the change until the last minute. 

It was noted that both the Chairman and Vice-Chairman would be 
unavailable on the date of the next Sub-Group meeting and therefore 
the meeting date would need to change. 

CF said it had been made clear at the last meeting that there would be 
a requirement for the Independent Members to re-apply to the 

Public Document Pack

4

Agenda Item 2



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Community Sub-Group
16 May 2018

2

Action By

Community Sub-Group.  Therefore she would be standing down as a 
committee member and this would be her last meeting.   

Answers and Updates to Public Questions
The Chairman provided an update to the public questions as set out in 
the report and covered the following points:

Railway Station – Letters had been sent from the Board to Greater 
Anglia and East Midlands Trains, to ask for meetings to progress the 
issues raised. 

Household Re-Cycling Centres – RR informed Members that a verbal 
update would be given to the Breckland Overview & Scrutiny 
Commission meeting on the 31 May; members of the public were 
encouraged to attend. In addition, all local authorities across the 
county were continuing to monitor the situation.

Planning Application for the change of use at Riverside – responses 
had been received following the questions raised by the Sub-Group at 
the previous meeting.

A Member of the public raised concerns about the change of use, and 
felt it would be better used as a food space.  She had contacted a 
person who was dealing with the marketing of this area, who had said 
that no-one was taking the space at the moment.  The Breckland 
Place Manager would ask the Breckland Strategic Property Manager 
to contact the individual directly.

Heritage Lottery bid – The Chairman asked to see a copy of the final 
version of the bid that was submitted to ensure that comments from 
the Community Sub-Group had been incorporated.  The Breckland 
Place Manager confirmed it was not available as it had been an on-line 
submission and confirmed the comments had been incorporated. A 
response from the Heritage Lottery was expected within 8-weeks, and 
if available a copy would be shared.  

Community Sub-Group Terms of Reference
The version on the website was not up to date to include that a 
representative from the Business Forum should be added.  However, it 
was noted that it did include wording that the Business Representative 
would be nominated by the Thetford Business Forum, and approved 
by the three representatives and Chairman of the Board.  
The Chairman would feedback to the Board that the Community Sub-
Group did not agree with this.

ACTION: RWh to feedback to the Board that it should be 
for the Business Forum to decide who should be 
nominated to attend the Community Sub-Group.

24/18 SUSTAINABLE URBAN EXPANSION, THETFORD ENTERPRISE 
PARK AND WATERSPACE UPDATES 

Sustainable Urban Extension
The planning application for the 300 homes had been submitted to 

5



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Community Sub-Group
16 May 2018

3

Action By

Breckland Council.  It was asked what amount had been allocated to 
social housing, and confirmed this was at 9% of the full build.

A member of the public raised concerns that the application only 
allocated one car-park space per property felt it should be two.  He felt 
that this was a serious problem and that no-one was listening to those 
concerns.

It was confirmed that Norfolk County Council had already made 
comment on the application with regard to the highways issue, and 
members of the public were encouraged to make their comments on 
the planning portal, found on the Breckland Website.

BC asked what provision had now been given to the school within the 
SUE area.  The Chairman confirmed that this had been raised with the 
GTDP Board.

Concerns were raised about highways issues on the new 
development, and it was felt that the bus routes should be in place 
before phase 1 was complete.  The Breckland Place Manager assured 
the public by confirming that the officer would draft their report based 
on all the information received from the public and all consultees, 
including Highways.  The public were encouraged to send in their 
concerns relating to the application

Thetford Enterprise Park
The planning application had been received and would be discussed 
at a meeting of the Thetford Town Council.  More information could be 
found at Ref: Y/3/2018/3002 eplanning.norfolk.gov.uk.

A member of the public raised that she had been in touch with 
Highways England three times complaining about the roundabout on 
Mundford Road, but had been ignored.  The street lighting was still not 
working and lorries were unable to see around the roundabout due to 
trees becoming too high and becoming very dangerous.  She asked 
that the Sub-Group take note of the public concerns and asked to 
pursue the maintenance work on this roundabout.

ACTION: RWh would raise these issues with the Board.

Waterspace Study Update
Claire Higson said she was working with an Officer at Breckland who 
had arranged for a container to be placed near the travel lodge so that 
the canoe work could be carried out during the summer months.  Work 
was also being undertaken to remove toxic waste.  The traveller’s had 
moved on and Serco had worked hard to tidy the area.

BC had also asked if there could be ‘bubblegum’-type machine 
available to hold duck food.  It would be investigated further.

25/18 PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

A member of the public asked what discussions were being had on 
improvements to road junctions around the town, particularly with 

6



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Community Sub-Group
16 May 2018

4

Action By

suitable road markings.  He raised in particular narrow road markings 
on the A134 where the road split into three at the roundabout.  The 
Chairman confirmed that Norfolk County Council were carrying out a 
study on roads within Thetford, and asked for further details from the 
individual.

ACTION: Member of the public to provide details to the 
Chairman, to forward onto the GTDP Board. 

Concerns were raised from local residents with regards to cyclists 
ignoring the traffic lights at the White Hart Street / Kings Street 
junction, and felt it was an accident waiting to happen.  The Chairman 
asked for further information so that he could send it to the GTDP 
Board.

A member of public felt concerned that the new signs regarding the 
Public Space Protection Orders were very small and could not be 
seen, and in addition asked if speed limits for mobility scooters should 
be addressed.  CF added that the sign was required to allow the 
authorities to carry out the law enforcement but that these were 
subjects that should be raised with the Safer Thetford Action Group 
(STAG).  It was expected that the Town council would raise an action 
plan together with STAG to discuss these issues.

26/18 ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 

 (a) Community Sub-Group Cycling and Walking Report  

The Chairman had met with Norfolk County Council Highways to 
discuss the Cycling and Walking report and a suggested list of 
projects were listed together with actions and recommendations.  

He went onto ask Members approval of the final version of the report 
and would forward it to the GTDP Board.

Members of the Sub-Group thanked the Chairman for the 
outstanding report and appreciated the amount of work that had 
gone into producing it.

BC asked if consideration had been given to those in wheelchairs, in 
particular with the dropped kerbs.  It was confirmed this had been 
covered under page 24 of the report.

It was asked if a walking route from the SUE to Tesco/Thetford 
Garden Centre had been included within the report.

ACTION – RWH will add this to the planning section of 
the report.

It was AGREED that subject to this change, the Cycling and Walking 
Report would be forwarded onto the GTDP Board.
  

7



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Community Sub-Group
16 May 2018

5

Action By

 (b) Thetford Boundary Change Proposals (Community Governance 
Review)  

The Chairman opened the discussion by welcoming Councillor 
Kybird, as Chairman of the Thetford Town Council Planning 
Committee to provide background to the Community Governance 
Review.  

RK informed Members that the area of Cloverfield used to be in the 
parish of Kilverstone but the boundary had moved prior to most of 
the houses being built, therefore there had been precedence set to 
change a boundary before houses had been built.  It was a matter 
for the District Council, in this case Breckland Council, to carry out a 
Community Governance Review.

A public discussion was had concerning the following issues:
 A paper that had been sent to residents suggested that the 

parish precept would remain the same but how could this be 
possible as more people would be using the already limited 
services.  It was felt the precept would need to be raised.

 There was some confusion over what was being proposed, 
and felt that it needed to be clearer.

 Residents were concerned over the parish boundary being 
moved, and therefore would affect the area the parish they 
would live in. Some residents did not want to live in the parish 
of Thetford, and it was the feeling of residents Croxton that 
they wanted to stay in the Croxton parish.

 Greater Thetford should incorporate villages as well as the 
town centre.

 Villages wanted their own independence.
 There was a proper process to follow for the Governance 

Review, and members of the Community Governance 
Review committee felt that it was premature to include the 
parishes within the parish of Thetford when the properties 
had not been built.

 English was a second language for many residents within 
Thetford, therefore it was thought that they did not 
understand what they were being consulted on.

 Croxton had held a questionnaire for its residents where over 
60% wanted the boundary to remain as it is.

27/18 ITEMS TO NOTE 

The items were noted. 

28/18 ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

None. 

29/18 MEETING SUMMARY 

The Chairman would complete the meeting summary and arrange for it 
to be uploaded onto the website.

8



Greater Thetford Development Partnership Community Sub-Group
16 May 2018

6

Action By

The meeting closed at 9.15 pm

CHAIRMAN

9



GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting

Wednesday 16th May 2018, 7–9pm,
King’s House, King Street, Thetford

Meeting Highlights
• The planning application for the first part of the Sustainable Urban Expansion

remains open for public comments, and has been amended slightly by the developer in
response to feedback so far. The application number is 3PL/2017/1576/D, and it can be
viewed online at https://goo.gl/QDX43g . There are many documents, but the Design
Statement at http://goo.gl/GqMNiu is a good place to start.

• Breckland District Council and Thetford Town Council have submitted a funding bid
to the Heritage Lottery Fund in mid April, as part of Breckland’s Market Towns
Initiative. The Sub-Group was able to provide some useful input into the bid documents.

• Members of Thetford River Group (https://www.thetfordrivergroup.org/) reported
waterspace developments, including progress towards the clearance of fallen trees and
a storage facility for canoe hire near the town centre.

• Issues raised in the Public Questions section of the meeting included various issues
with road junctions in the town, the behaviour of some cyclists jumping red lights and
cycling in the pedestrianised area of King Street, and the small size of the PSPO signs.
These issues will be passed on the the appropriate bodies.

• The draft Cycling and Walking Routes Report was approved by the Sub-Group,
subject to a couple of minor additions. It will be presented at the next GTDP Board
meeting, for the Board to endorse. Full details can be found at
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/cycling-walking .

• A discussion was held on the proposed boundary changes for Thetford, which are
currently undergoing a Community Governance Review by Breckland council. The Stage
2 Consultation is open until 22nd June, and full details can be found online at
https://www.breckland.gov.uk/CGR-secondconsultation-2018 .

For more information, the agenda and papers for the meeting can be found online at
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/community-subgroup. The full minutes will be uploaded there
within about two weeks of the meeting.

Next GTDP Board Meeting: 11th June 2018 (10am–12 noon; venue to be confirmed.)

Next Community Sub-Group Meeting: Provisionally 18th July 2018 (7–9pm)

7

Minute Item 29

10

https://goo.gl/QDX43g
http://goo.gl/GqMNiu
https://www.thetfordrivergroup.org/
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/cycling-walking
https://www.breckland.gov.uk/CGR-secondconsultation-2018
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/community-subgroup


Item 3: Chairman’s Notes
Robert Whittaker

GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting, 19th September 2018

The Sub-Group meeting scheduled for 11th July 2018 was cancelled as it clashed with an England
football match in the World Cup, so this report covers the period since the previous meeting on
21st March 2018.

1 GTDP Board Meetings

As the GTDP Board did not meet in August, there has only been one meeting since March to
report on. I attended the GTDP Board meeting on 11th June as the Sub-Group’s representative.
This was held as a private meeting, but I do not think this was necessary or appropriate. I can
appreciate (though disagree with) the desire by some to discuss governance arrangements in
private, but I see no reason at all why the rest of the meeting also needed to be in private. I
therefore objected to the exclusion of the public, but to no avail. It was stated at the meeting
that a public version of the minutes would be produced, but at the time of writing these have
yet to appear on the website at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/board.

Some of the key points from the meeting were as follows:

• Various GTDP governance-change proposals were brought to the meeting by Breckland
Council, which were all passed. In particular this means each of the councils (including the
parishes) will be invited to send two representatives to the Board meetings in future. While
the Community Sub-Group will still have a representative at the Board meetings, they will
be non-voting. There will also be reduced administrative support for the Community Sub-
Group (see later agenda item).

• Because of the proposed changes to the Board, the advertising for the Independent mem-
bers of the Community Sub-Group had been put on hold. This has now been resumed.

• The Sub-Group’s Cycling and Walking report got a positive response from the Board. The
full report is available online at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/cycling-walking. The Board
wanted to the relevant council officers to look at the recommendations in more detail before
considering actions, and it was requested that I meet with the Officers to discuss things
further. I have not heard anything more about this yet. I asked for an update on progress
for this meeting, but had not received a response at time of writing.

On a more positive note, two of the recommended actions in the report have now been
completed. The bushes overgrowing the cycle path on London Road between Newtown and
St Martin’s Way have been dealt with, and also the grass and stinging nettles encroaching
Green Lane on the Cloverfields estate have been cut back.

• Despite the strong recommendation from the Community Sub-Group, the Board voted to
require Thetford Business Forum’s choice of rep for the Sub-Group to be approved by the
Board Chair and the three Sub-Group Town/Parish members. The Sub-Group’s view was
that the Business Forum should be free to chose their own representative.

1

11

Agenda Item 3

http://www.gtdp.org.uk/board
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/cycling-walking


2 Answers and Updates to Public Questions and Concerns

Various issues have been raised by the public at previous Sub-Group meetings, and we have
attempted to investigate and provide updates.

Road Junctions. At the Sub-Group meeting in May, a member of the public raised a number
of issues regarding the design / geometry of road junctions in the town. He sent me
further written details after the meeting, which I forwarded on to David Cumming at
Norfolk County Council to feed in to their current highways work.

Size of PSPO Signs. At the Sub-Group meeting in May, the small size of the ‘Public Spaces
Protection Order’ signs was questioned, as some thought they were too small to be noticed
by most people. As promised, I have forwarded the issue on to the Safer Thetford Action
Group (STAG) for them to consider.

Railway Station Access Issues and Parking. Various issues with the station have been
raised at different Community Sub-Group meetings, including the poor accessibility of
the footbridge and the lack of car parking. The Board wrote to Greater Anglia back in
March, but have yet to make any significant progress with them.

There is a possibility of moving some of the allotments to the north of the station to make
way for extra parking. There were no updates on this at the Board meeting, but I think
the sticking point may be finding a suitable alternative site for the displaced allotments.

Cost of Purchasing Train Tickets on the Train. At the November 2017 Sub-Group meet-
ing, an issue was raised about passengers being charged more when buying tickets on the
train compared with buying them at the station. In almost all cases, this shouldn’t hap-
pen. The main exception is those travelling with East Midlands Trains, who do not give
railcard discounts on the train if ticketing facilities are available at the station.

The Board wrote to East Midlands Trains about this issue in April, and have got some
positive engagement from the company, but as yet there is nothing definite to report.

Health-Care Provision Concern had been expressed at various Community Sub-Group meet-
ings about the lack of planning for expanded health-care provision for the new SUE resi-
dents. There was again nothing further on this at the last Board meeting, but the issues
should be picked up in the forward plan work, and dealt with at a future meeting.

Poor Standard of Pothole Repairs At our March 2018 meeting, a member of the public
again raised the issue of the poor repair of potholes in Harwood Avenue. The repairs seem
to have used too much tarmac, which has over-spilled the holes and sites proud of the
original surface. I have since noticed similar patches elsewhere around the town.

I have been in contact again with David Jacklin (Highway Engineer at Norfolk County
Council) since the last Sub-Group meeting. It is still not clear whether the filling has
been done properly, but David said that the work in question would be inspected. I have
recently asked for an update, but have not had a response at the time of writing.

2

12



Item 6: Items for Discussion
GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting, 11th July 2018

(a) Community Sub-Group Independent Member Recruitment

The four independent members of the Community Sub-Group were originally selected by the
Board following an open application process. A similar process is now being run again to select a
new set of independent members. Existing members of the Sub-Group are welcome to re-apply.

The process was due to start several months ago, but was put on hold because of the proposed
changes to the GTDP Board. The process has now been resumed. A panel comprising the
Board Chair and the three Town and Parish reps on the Sub-Group are running the process,
with support from Breckland Council.

A poster is included overleaf, and full details about the positions and the application process
can be found online at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/get-involved. Anyone interested needs to
return a completed application form by the deadline of noon on Monday 1st October. The forms
can be found online or obtained from Leaping Hare on King Street. Informal enquiries can be
made to Cassie Ruffell, Breckland Council’s Regeneration Manager on 01362 656870. Interested
parties are also warmly invited to come to this Sub-Group meeting to find out more.

(b) Community Sub-Group Administrative Support

Breckland Council has decided to cut back on the resources it provides to the Community Sub-
Group, so will no longer be providing someone to take minutes at our meetings. Breckland
Council will also no longer be providing printed copies of the agenda and papers for the public.
We therefore need to consider our options here.

If one of the Sub-Group members takes minutes during the meeting, then this could limit their
ability to contribute. Although a possibility to make things easier would be to arrange for audio
recording of the meetings. Alternatively, we could try to recruit someone specifically to take
minutes. However, it is unclear if there would be any funding available to remunerate them, so
it may need to be done on a voluntary basis.

As regards copies of the papers for the meeting, perhaps one of the organisations represented
on the Sub-Group would be able to provide a solution here.

1

13

Agenda Item 4

http://www.gtdp.org.uk/get-involved


Represent your 
community and 

help shape future 
developments

If so, this volunteer role may be for you! The Greater Thetford Development 
Partnership (GTDP) is currently seeking four Volunteer Community 

Representatives to join its Community Sub-Group.

The GTDP is a strategic partnership made up of representatives from county, district and parish 
councils, working together on exciting projects to improve the lives of residents of Thetford and  

the parishes of Brettenham, Croxton and Kilverstone.

As a member of the Community Sub-Group, the Volunteer Community Representatives will ensure 
future development in these areas is shaped by the views of local people, as the Sub-Group 

holds regular public meetings and then shares feedback with the overarching GTDP Board. More 
information about the GTDP and its Community Sub-Group can be found online at www.gtdp.org.uk.

Application forms can be downloaded from www.gtdp.org.uk or obtained in hard copy by calling 
01362 656870. The application deadline is noon on Monday 1 October. For informal enquiries, 
please call Cassie Ruffell, Breckland Council’s Regeneration Manager, 01362 656870. Applicants 

must be aged 18+ and live or work in the parishes of Brettenham, Croxton, Kilverstone or Thetford. 

Shortlisted applicants will be invited to attend an informal interview.

Do you live in or work in Brettenham, Croxton,  
Kilverstone or Thetford?

Are you actively involved in your community with  
a good network of local contacts?

Can you put forward ideas from the residents of the area you live in? 
Can you work positively and collaboratively?

GTDP Recruitment Advert 190x128.indd   1 21/08/2018   13:23

14



Item 4: SUE, TEP and
Waterspace Updates

GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting, 19th September 2018

1 SUE Phase 1A Planning Application

The first new houses on the Sustainable Urban Expansion (SUE) — also known as Kingsfleet —
will be built by Hopkins Homes, on land inside the A11 between the A1075 Norwich Road and
the Railway. Outline planning permission for the whole development was granted in 2015. The
‘reserved matters’ application containing the detail plans for this first sub-phase was considered
by Breckland’s planning committee on 4th June, where it was approved. The applications,
reports, and planning conditions can be viewed online:

• Outline Permission for SUE Development (3PL/2011/0805/O) http://goo.gl/YHqXr5

• Reserved Matters Permission for Phase 1A (3PL/2017/1576/D) http://goo.gl/QDX43g

2 Community Governance Review (Thetford Boundary Change)

At the request of Thetford Town Council, Breckland District Council is currently running a
Community Governance Review to consider changing the boundary of the Parish of Thetford
so that it incorporates the whole of the new development to the north of the town.

Two stages of consultation have now been completed. The most recent ran from 16th April
to 22nd June, and attracting 3947 responses. Of these, 3855 (97.67%) were in favour of the
boundary being moved.

The Community Governance Sub-Committee of Breckland Council met on Wednesday 8th Au-
gust 2018 to consider the responses. After much discussion and representations from various
councillors and other representatives, the Sub-Committee agreed to recommend that the bound-
ary between Thetford and Croxton be moved to the A11, while the boundary with Kilverstone
would remain where it is for the time being. If accepted by the Full Council, this would mean
that the first three phases of the Kingsfleet development (up until around 2034) will be within
Thetford parish. A review of the Kilverstone Boundary could be carried out nearer the time of
the later development (which will take place on land currently in Kilverstone Parish).

A third consultation is now taking place between 20th August and 28th September. This is
giving people the opportunity to comment on the new proposals, including the addition of a
new two-councillor ward for Thetford Town Council, what that new ward should be called, and
any further comments on the boundary move. Details can be found on the Breckland website
at https://www.breckland.gov.uk/Community-Governance-Review-Thetford

Assuming that the proposed boundary change goes through, none of the new development
would occur in the Parish of Croxton. There is therefore a future question about how Croxton
Parish should be represented within the GTDP and Community Sub-Group. It is perhaps a bit
premature to consider this in detail at the moment, but Sub-Group members may wish to start
giving it some thought. Where-ever the development occurs, residents in surrounding parishes
will still have an interest in the Town and its facilities, so there is certainly a benefit in retaining
their input to the Community Sub-Group.

1

15

Agenda Item 5

http://goo.gl/YHqXr5
http://goo.gl/QDX43g
https://www.breckland.gov.uk/Community-Governance-Review-Thetford


3 TEP Roundabout

Funding is in place for the new roundabout to provide access to the Thetford Enterprise Park
(TEP) site, which is the land between the A11, A1066 Mundford Road, and Brunel Way. The
roundabout will be built at the junction of the A1066 and Wyatt Way, with an additional exit
being provided for the TEP.

A formal planning application for the work (Y/3/2018/3002) was approved by Norfolk County
Council on 10th July 2018. Details can be found at https://bit.ly/2tTIuDg. According to
Norfolk County Council, work on site is due to start around the 10th September and is expected
to last 13 weeks. Full details can be found at https://bit.ly/2CtmbLn.

Norfolk County Council say that the project cost is £1.5M (an update from their original release
that said £950k), but it is unclear if this figure includes all the design and planning work.
Funds allocated to the project include £1.98M from the Local Enterprise Partnership (which
was originally intended for sustainable transport projects in Thetford) and £450k allocated by
Norfolk County Council from their ‘Pooled Business Rates’. There is also a sum of £400k from
residual Moving Thetford Forward funding, that was re-allocated by Breckland council for the
TEP, but it is unclear what this will be / has been spent on.

At the last GTDP Board meeting in June, I asked for detail of the budget / estimated costs for
the TEP Roundabout project. Robert Campbell from Breckland Council promised to provide
the figures, but despite me chasing this up with him several times, he has not yet done so
at time of writing. Any excess funding left over from the Roundabout should be available
for sustainable transport projects in or around Thetford, such as those recommended by the
Sub-Group’s Cycling and Walking report (http://www.gtdp.org.uk/cycling-walking).

4 Waterspace Issues

Over the summer, it was reported to me a couple of times that there were problems with fallen
trees blocking the use of the river by small craft between Thetford and Santon Downham. Weeds
were also still a hindrance to the same. I was told that the Environment Agency, who have some
responsibility for the river, were only prepared to take action to prevent flooding, not to maintain
navigation.

I made some enquires with the Environment Agency to try to determine what their powers and
responsibilities are. (Could they, for example, require the owners of fallen trees to clear them?)
Unfortunately, there appears to be some confusion over exactly who holds the Navigation Rights
(which could confer powers to deal with navigation issues on the river) to that stretch of the
river. The initial response I had from the Environment Agency said they thought the Navigation
Rights rest with Breckland District Council.

Until recently, this was generally thought to be correct, as Breckland Council is the successor
body to the old Thetford Borough that previously held the Navigation Rights. However, recent
research by the East Anglian Waterways Association, has found that the Rights were transferred
from the Borough to the River Great Ouse Catchment Board in 1935. (See the last page of the
document at https://bit.ly/2CuClnI.) The Navigation Rights would thus probably now rest
with the Environment Agency, as the successor body to that Catchment Board.

I am still waiting for a response from the Environment Agency on this matter, after supplying
them with the evidence above from the East Anglian Waterways Association.

2

16

https://bit.ly/2tTIuDg
https://bit.ly/2CtmbLn
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/cycling-walking
https://bit.ly/2CuClnI

	Agenda
	1 Agenda
	2 Minutes - 16 May 2018
	Minutes
	29 Meeting Summary

	3 Chairmans Notes
	GTDP Board Meetings
	Answers and Updates to Public Questions and Concerns

	4 Items for Discussion
	5 SUE / TEP Update
	SUE Phase 1A Planning Application
	Community Governance Review (Thetford Boundary Change)
	TEP Roundabout
	Waterspace Issues


